ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE RESOQURCES STANDI NG COWM TTEE
April 6, 2005
2:03 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Jay Ranras, Co-Chair
Represent ati ve Ral ph Samuel s, Co-Chair
Representative JimElKkins
Representative Carl Gatto
Representative Gabrielle LeDoux
Representative Kurt O son

Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Harry Crawford
Representative Mary Kapsner

MEMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present

COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 230

"An Act authorizing the making of l|oans for upgrade of
comercial fishing tender vessels and gear."

- MOVED HB 230 OQUT OF COW TTEE

PREVI OUS COVM TTEE ACTI ON

BILL: HB 230

SHORT TITLE: LOANS FOR COMMVERCI AL FI SHI NG TENDERS
SPONSOR(S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) THOVAS

03/ 22/ 05 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
03/ 22/ 05 (H) FSH, RES

03/ 30/ 05 (H) FSH AT 8:30 AM CAPI TOL 124

03/ 30/ 05 (H Moved Qut of Commttee

03/ 30/ 05 (H) M NUTE( FSH)

04/ 01/ 05 (H) FSH RPT 4DP 1NR

04/ 01/ 05 (H) DP: WLSON, ELKINS, LEDOUX, THOVAS;
04/ 01/ 05 (H) NR:  SALMON

04/ 06/ 05 (H) RES AT 1: 00 PM CAPI TOL 124

W TNESS REG STER

| AN FI SK, Staff
to Representative Bill Thomas

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -1- April 6, 2005



Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 230 on behal f of Representative
Thomas, sponsor.

JERRY MCCUNE

Cordova District Fishernmen United

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 230.

JASON KOONTZ, Tender Oamner

Homer, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 230 and
recommended addi ti ons.

GREG W NEGAR, Director

Di vision of Investnents

Departnent of Comrerce, Community, & Econom c Devel opnent
Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answered questions on HB 230.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

COCHAIR RALPH SAMUJELS called the House Resources Standing

Commttee neeting to order at 2:03:43 PM Represent ati ves
Samuel s, Elkins, dson, Crawford, and LeDoux were present at the
call to order. Representati ves Kapsner, Ranras, and Gatto

arrived as the neeting was in progress.

HB 230- LOANS FOR COMVERCI AL FI SHI NG TENDERS

CO CHAI R SAMUELS announced that the only order of business would
be HOUSE BILL NO 230 "An Act authorizing the nmaking of |oans
for upgrade of commercial fishing tender vessels and gear."

| AN FISK, Staff to Representative Bill Thonmas, Alaska State
Legi sl ature, said comerci al fishermen have access to a
revolving loan fund. The fund is in the Departnent of Commerce,
and it enables fishernmen to borrow nobney to purchase permts

boats, and for product quality inprovenent. The program
encourages Al aska ownership of the industry by limting the
| oans to residents. Fish tender owners do not currently have
access to the loan, but HB 230 wll change that for product
qual ity upgrades. Conpanies can apply for the |oans, but all of
the owners nust be qualified Al aska residents.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 2- April 6, 2005



CO CHAI R SAMUELS asked if all the shareholders of a corporation
have to qualify as residents.

MR, FISK said that was the way he understood it.
REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFCORD asked where the | oan noney cane from

MR FISK said it was initially capitalized with state funds in
the 1970s, and it has not gotten any general funds since 1985.
It is a self-sustaining revolving fund, he said, and it covers
the cost of the operations as well. He added that the program
has helped a |ot of fishernen over the years. He predicts four
or five loans to tender operators per year.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked about the programs success rate.
MR. FI SK deferred to the fund managers.

REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX speculated that tendering may be |ess
risky financially than fishing.

MR. FISK said perhaps it is less risky because tenders usually
get a fixed daily rate; however, sone operate on a percentage.

2:09:15 PM

JASON KOONTZ, Homer, said he is a new owner of a fishing tender
and HB 230 | ooks good, but he would like it to include |oans for

refinancing or purchasing vessels. The borrowers could use
refinance noney to upgrade their vessels, he said, but it is a
great bill and a good step forward. He said the noney should

stay in the fund and not go to the general fund, especially
since the salnon fisheries are reboundi ng.

2:10: 53 PM

JERRY MCCUNE, Cordova District Fishernen United, Juneau, said
fishernen all over the state depend on tenders--they are a big
part of the operation. There are sone tender operators who do
not have fishing permts, so HB 230 nmakes the whole industry
eligible to access the | oan fund.

2:12: 12 PM

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said he has only known one tender owner and
he was outrageously wealthy.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 3- April 6, 2005



MR. MCCUNE said sonme big king crabbers tender in the sunmmer and
don't need | oans, but there are small independent operators.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked if it was the sanme risk as fishing.
2:13: 25 PM

MR MCCUNE said tenders have the sanme risk if there is no
season, but tenders sign contracts, which is less risky than
agreeing to a percentage. The daily rate may be used for a
smal | sockeye fishery, he said. He stated that tender operators
with fishing permts already have access to the | oan program

REPRESENTATI VE KAPSNER said there were once tender boats on the
Kuskokwi m R ver, and they did not nmake a | ot of noney.

2:15: 04 PM
REPRESENTATI VE LEDOUX sai d Representative Seaton owns tenders.

REPRESENTATI VE  SEATON said he was not the guy that
Representative Gatto was thinking of. There are different
tender operations in each area of the state, he said. Sone
tenders haul big volunes of lowvalue fish. There is a category
of tender owners who are the poorest of the poor, he noted.
They don't have the noney to buy a fishing permt so they get an
ol d boat, a cannery may provide the fuel, and they becone snall -
scal e tenders. The cheaper boats often don't have good
refrigeration systens, and the bill wll help wth those
upgrades. Representative Seaton declared a conflict of interest
because he has four tenders.

CO CHAIR SAMJELS acknow edged Representative Seaton's conflict
of interest but required himto vote.

2:17:47 PM

GREG W NEGAR, Director, Division of Investnents, Departnent of
Commerce, Comunity, & Econom c Devel opnent, said the total that
has gone into the loan fund is $60 mllion, and the | ast
appropriation from the state was in 1985. He noted that $84

mllion have been transferred back out of the fund to the
general fund or to other prograns. The program has made about
$373 mllion in loans, and there are about $100 nmillion on the
books. It is conpletely revolving, and as a loan is repaid it

goes back into the fund and al so covers all operating expenses.

HOUSE RES COW TTEE -4- April 6, 2005



2:20:01 PM
REPRESENTATI VE CRAWFORD asked if the loan fund is protected.
MR. W NEGAR said the fund is conpletely protected and separate.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted M. MCune's testinony that tenders
who fish can get | oans.

MR. WNEGAR said there are sone fishernmen that also tender but
when they come in for loans, the loans are for their fishing
vessels, not for their tenders. This bill will make it clear
t hat noney can be borrowed for a tender, he added.

2:21: 17 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he wanted to Kkeep that clear.
Tendering and fishing are different operations.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO asked what the default rate is and if boats
are used for coll ateral

MR. W NEGAR said the program has foreclosed and taken vessels,
but it is a last resort. The fund' s default rate is 9.8 percent
for the total program but only 7.0 percent for the product
qual ity upgrade | oans. It is probably higher than a honme | oan
program because of the higher risks, and nmany borrowers don't
qualify for conventional bank | oans.

2.22:42 PM

REPRESENTATI VE ELKINS noved to report HB 230, version 24-
LS0801\ G out of comrittee with individual recommendations and
t he acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, HB 230
was passed fromthe House Resources Standing Committee.

ADJ OURNNMVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Resources Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 2:25 PM

HOUSE RES COW TTEE - 5- April 6, 2005



